9ity of Seattle Invitation to Bid #3018

Addendum 

March 28, 2012


The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid #3018, titled Outdoor Cleaning of Seattle Downtown Core released on 3/14/2012.  The due date and time for responses has been change to April 10, 2012, 2:00 PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the ITB.  This addendum is hereby made part of the ITB and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	ITB Revisions

	1
	
	3/28/12
	
	
	Due date and time has been changed to April 10, 2012, 2:00 PM.

	2
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Do you want the alleys cleaned?
	No
	

	3
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Do you want the urine cleaned in the alley?
	No, alleys are outside of the scope of work.  City of Seattle performs daily alley cleaning. 
	

	4
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What if there is fecal matter in the alley?
	No, unless it’s adjacent to the sidewalk you are cleaning.
	

	5
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Can you clarify where pressure washing is not allowed?
	Pressure washing is not allowed in the orange area of the map, see Attachment #3.
	

	6
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What type of cleaning products should we use?
	Seattle Public Utilities (SPU) will work with the vendor upon contract award to specify products that can be used for pressure washing.
	

	7
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What days and hours do you want the cleaning done? 
	
	See Revised Specifications embedded below:


[image: image1.emf]Attachment 1  Revised Specifications.doc




	8
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Can we use machinery to do the pressure washing?
	Yes
	

	9
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Can I use a 26 foot box truck to do the cleaning?
	Yes, that is acceptable.  The vendor is required to comply with all access and parking regulations.
	

	10
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Does the vendor need to provide their own water to clean the sidewalks?
	
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	11
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	How many block faces do we clean per week?
	Pressure washing is one block face per week.
	

	12
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What about the retail property owners do we need to meet with them?
	The Vendor is responsible for contacting the property and business owners.   
	

	13
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What does a block face mean?
	One side of the street within a block.
	

	14
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Are the vendors required to dispose of needles?
	Yes, SPU will provide proper disposal upon contract award.
	

	15
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What if we see other areas that need to be pressure washed?
	You will be pressure washing on an as needed basis.  Pressure washing is to to be conducted on sidewalks only, within the designated areas only, 1 block face/week.
	

	16
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Why can’t we clean after 9:00pm?
	SPU has specified specific hours for cleaning
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	17
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What if there is an extremely strong smell of urine in the alley?
	See Revised Specifications, page 1, report issues to the project manager.
	

	18
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What type of clothing should we wear?
	SPU has no clothing requirements.
	

	19
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What if the litter cans have TV’s or mattresses or other large items in them?
	See Revised Specifications, page 1, report issues to the project manager.
	

	20
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	Will the city provide the bags for the overflow of litter cans?
	
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	21
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What do we do with the trash we bag?
	
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	22
	3/21/2012
	3/28/12
	What wage category should we use for this type of work?
	You can e-mail  Labor and Industry to determine the correct wage category herq235@LNI.WA.GOV
	

	23
	3/22/2012
	3/28/12
	In the Bid the following statement leads to believe water is in fact available from the various buildings where Pressure Washing is designated. Is this the case or do all Pressure Washing  activities need be performed with a self contained unit?•    Sidewalk pressure washing -- 1 block face/week on designated blocks , in consultation with adjoining business/property owner and contingent on availability and cost of water.


	
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	24
	3/23/2012
	3/28/12
	The cost for water to actually do pressure washing has not been accounted for.  We will assume the City only wants the cost to perform the work.  Is this correct? 
	
	See Revised Specifications, item #6 above.

	25
	3/23/2012
	3/28/12
	We have not been able to find a prevailing rate for outdoor sidewalk sweeping in the Washington State – there are rates for janitors (inside) and street sweepers but we think this is a rate for folks who actually drive motorized vehicles.  Do you have a suggestion for us on what prevailing rate to use?  Or are you even able to give us that advice?  We also do not believe comparing the loose litter sweeping to a window washer is a fair labor comparison.


	See #21 above
	

	26
	3/23/2012
	3/28/12
	What is the expected date for contract start?  I was unable to find this in any of the documents.

	The desired start date for this contract is April 16, 2012, however it’s subject to change.
	


	27
	3/23/2012
	3/28/12
	Can you let us know which entity in SPU put together the pressure washing guidelines?  We have questions about the methodology.  Namely, using cold water will not adequately clean the sidewalks etc.  There are several other provisions that may not actually apply to the downtown area that we could eliminate.  Are we allowed to consult with that entity about this bid?
	The pressure washing guidelines are not applicable to the maintenance service area for this particular contract due to the storm drains flowing into a combined system that is treated.  The pressure washing guidelines were developed by the SPU surface water quality inspection team and are applicable if the storm drain site is in an active National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System whereby the storm drain flows directly into Puget Sound, creeks, lakes, or watersheds.  All questions regarding this bid shall be sent to the buyer Sara Schutt  
e –mail atsara.schutt@seattle.gov  The selected vendor may consult with SPU, after contract award.
	

	28
	3/23/2012
	3/28/12
	We will be quoting a labor rate in the monthly bid that is averaging for two years since the contract does not allow for pay increases within the first two years.  Is this what you were expecting?  I am concerned that we may not be able to hire folks if they know they cannot get a raise for two full years.  I may be over thinking this issue – please advise.  


	See page 8, of Invitation to Bid.
	See ITB3018, page 5, #1, third sentence; change “two” to “one” year. 
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Revised Specifications - Downtown Outdoor Maintenance Services

(Revisions are in red)


Specific areas of Seattle’s downtown commercial core have long had problems with poor urban design, insufficient lighting, crime, and maintenance issues such as ground litter.  These issues have created a popular perception that Third Avenue and the downtown commercial core as a whole are becoming more dangerous.


During the 2012 budget process, Council passed a Statement of Legislative Intent (SLI #114-2-A-2) which creates a task force to identify actions needed to improve the functionality, design, safety and security of the downtown Third Avenue Transit Corridor.  In support of this effort, Council appropriated additional funding for regular cleaning in the corridor.  This bid process will select a vendor with expertise in providing the specified outdoor maintenance services.


The maintenance service area is defined as the area between First and Fourth Avenues and Stewart and Union Streets (service to be provided inside the boundary perimeter only).


Specified maintenance services and preferred corresponding service frequencies are:


· Sidewalk sweeping to collect ground litter -- all sidewalks covered 1/night

· At no cost to the City, Vendor shall dispose of all trash picked up

· Ensure street side litter cans are not overflowing and cleanup any litter around cans -- as needed.  Only remove and bag the overflowing litter from side litter cans.  At no cost to the City, Vendor shall provide the litter bags.

· Human waste cleanup on sidewalks (pressure wash & deodorize) -- as needed 


· Sidewalk pressure washing -- 1 block face/week on designated blocks
, in consultation with adjoining business/property owner and contingent on availability and cost of water 


· Issue reporting (any maintenance issue to responsible party) -- as needed


Examples include:


· Graffiti on public or private property


· Street light problem


· Plugged storm drain


· Dumpster issues

· Strong Odors

· Large Items

These services do not replicate work provided by other City staff.  

Hours of service are:

· Daily (Monday through Sunday) 6:00 PM – 9:00 PM for all services except sidewalk pressure washing


· Sidewalk pressure washing – Daily, Monday through Friday 7:00 AM – 10:00 PM, Saturday and Sunday  9:00 AM – 10:00 PM (in consultation with adjoining business/property owner given residential area, business hours and pedestrian foot traffic) 

At no cost to the City, the Vendor may provide their own water or the vendor may purchase a hydrant permit.  The permit cost for the initial 6 months is $841.00 and $176.00 for every 6 months time period thereafter.  The selected vendor will work with the program manager to obtain the permit.


To protect environmental critical areas, human health and property, the pressure washing guidelines should be followed for sidewalk pressure washing in the downtown area.   


 Note: Only specific sidewalks within the designated area have been identified as candidates for pressure washing due to issues which prohibit or limit pressure washing on some sidewalks in this area (please see map, Attachment #3).  

Pressure Washing Guidance


 Pressure washing with discharge to the storm drainage system of equipment is not allowed, with or without chemicals.  


Pressure washing with discharge to the storm drainage system of sidewalks and parking lots is acceptable (although discouraged), provided that the water contains no visible discoloration or discharge of any prohibited discharge (see below for prohibited discharges).


These conditions shall be met prior to washing:


1. Debris and dirt are swept or cleaned off manually before pressure washing


2. Visible stains or deposits of pollutants cannot be washed into the storm drainage system (oil spots, food, grease, animal/bird feces. Etc.)


3. No soaps, cleaners, disinfectants, or other chemicals are used, only cold water


4. Discharge is limited to clear water with no visible discoloration from contaminants


5. Every effort is made to direct wash water into vegetation and away from the storm drainage system


6. Washing is infrequent and uses efficient washing practices to minimize water usage 


Note:  A site with an active NPDES is prohibited from discharging any pressure washwater of any kind to the storm drain system. 


Prohibited Discharges: The following common substances are prohibited to enter, either directly or indirectly, a public drainage system, a private drainage system, or a receiving water within or contiguous to Seattle city limits, including but not limited to when entering via a service drain, overland flow, or as a result of a spill or deliberate dumping:


1. acids;


2. alkalis including cement wash water;


3. ammonia;


4. animal carcasses;


5. antifreeze, oil, gasoline, grease and all other automotive and petroleum products;


6. chemicals not normally found in uncontaminated water;


7. chlorinated swimming pool or hot tub water;


8. chlorine;


9. commercial and household cleaning materials;


10. detergent;


11. dirt;


12. domestic or sanitary sewage;


13. drain cleaners;


14. fertilizers;


15. flammable or explosive materials;


16. food and food waste;


17. gravel.


18. herbicides;


19. human and animal waste;


20. industrial process wastewater,


21. ink;


22. laundry waste;


23. metals in excess of naturally occurring amounts, whether in liquid or solid form;


24. painting products;


25. pesticides;


26. sand;


27. soap;


28. solid waste;


29. solvents and degreasers;


30. steam-cleaning waste; and,


31. yard waste.



Permissible Discharges to Drainage Systems and Receiving Waters: Discharges from the sources listed below are permissible discharges unless the Director of SPU determines that the type of discharge, directly or indirectly to a public drainage system, private drainage system, or a receiving water within or contiguous to Seattle city limits, whether singly or in combination with others, is causing or contributing to a violation of the City's NPDES storm water permit or is causing or contributing to a water quality problem:


1. Discharges from potable water sources, including flushing of potable water lines, hyper chlorinated water line flushing, fire hydrant system flushing, and pipeline hydrostatic test water. Planned discharges shall be de-chlorinated to a concentration of 0.1 ppm or less, pH adjusted if necessary, and volumetrically and velocity controlled to prevent resuspension of sediments in the drainage system;


2. Discharges from washing or rinsing of potable water storage reservoirs, dechlorinated as above;


3. Discharges from surface waters, including diverted stream flows;


4. Discharges of uncontaminated groundwater, including uncontaminated groundwater infiltration (as defined at 40 CFR 35.2005(2, uncontaminated pumped groundwater, and rising ground waters;


5. Discharges of air conditioning condensation;


6. Discharges from springs;


7. Discharges of uncontaminated water from crawl space pumps;


8. Discharges from lawn watering;


9. Discharges from irrigation runoff, including irrigation water from agricultural sources that is commingled with storm water and that does not contain prohibited substances;


10. Discharges from riparian habitats and wetlands;


11. Discharges from approved footing drains and other subsurface drains or, where approval is not required, installed in compliance with this subtitle and rules promulgated pursuant to this subtitle;


12. Discharges from foundation drains;


13. Discharges from swimming pools, hot tubs, fountains, or similar aquatic recreation facilities and constructed water features, provided the discharges have been dechlorinated to a concentration of 0.1 ppm or less, pH-adjusted and reoxygenated if necessary, and volumetrically and velocity controlled to prevent resuspension of sediments in the drainage control system;


14. Discharges of street and sidewalk wash-water that does not use detergents or chemical additives;


15. Discharges of water used to control dust;


16. Discharges of water from routine external building wash down that does not use detergents or chemical additives;


17. Discharges that are in compliance with a separate individual or general NPDES permit;


18. Discharges that are from emergency fire fighting activities; and


19. Other non-storm water discharges provided these discharges are in compliance with the requirements of an approved storm water pollution prevention plan that addresses such discharges.
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